
VILLAGE OF CORRALES

GOVERNING BODY

AGENDA
February 12, 2008

7:00 p.m.

COUNCIL/MUNICIPAL COURT CHAMBERS

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. January 22, 2008 Council Meeting

January 23, 2008 Special Council Meeting

February 5, 2008 Special Council Meeting

IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS

V. COMMUNICATIONS

2. Village Administrators Report

Santa Ana Pueblo presentation regarding wild turkeys

VI. COUNCILORS FORUM: This section is for information purposes only, not for discussion and debate, to

inform the Governing Body of an issue/concern that would not be addressed on the agenda during the

business session.

VII. CORRALESOS FORUM: This section is for information purposes only, not for discussion and debate, to
inform the Governing Body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda during the

business session. There is a 3-minute time limit, unless approved by the Presiding Officer.

VIII. CONFIRMATION OF PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATION:

3. N/A

IX. CONFIRMATION OF APPOINTMENTS

4. Rae Lee Siporin to the Senior Advisory Board

Cheryl J. Cathcart to the Bosque Advisory Commission

X. OLD BUSINESS:

5. Third Reading:

Discussion and consideration of Ordinance No. 07-020, an Ordinance amending section 8-26,

"Definitions", and Section 8-27, "adoption of Corrales building code; amendments; penalties" of the

Code of Ordinances of the Village of Corrales, being sections 10-1-1 through 10-1-4 of ordinance

no. 67, adopted August 10, 1976, as amended; adopting by reference the 2003 New Mexico

historic earthen buildings code; incorporating the 2003 New Mexico Historic Earthen Buildings

Code into the Corrales Building Code.

6. Second Reading:

Discussion of Ordinance No. 08-002, an ordinance to impose a ¼ of 1% increase in Municipal

Gross Receipts Tax in the Village of Corrales, the proceeds to be directed to public safety

purposes and subject to approval by referendum of voters in the Village of Corrales

7. Accept the Wastewater System Peer Review Report dated February, 2008 from Souder, Miller and

Associates



XI. NEW BUSINESS:

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

9. Discussion and consideration of Resolution 08-011, a Resolution to direct the Village

Administration to procure an Environmental Impact Document as part of the process to qualify for

the Environmental Protection Agency Grant Award XP 98689901-1

10. Discussion and consideration of Findings and Conclusions pursuant to adoption of Ordinance 08-

001 at Special Meeting February 5, 2008

11. Discussion and consideration to publish and post Ordinance No. 08-003, an ordinance amending

various sections of Chapter 18, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Corrales the

"Village", being Ordinance No. 115, adopted December 14, 1982, as amended by Ordinance No.

137, adopted September 25, 1984 and by Ordinance No.188, adopted February 15, 1988;

providing for flood damage prevention; adopting current flood insurance rate maps for the Village;

making other amendments consistent with federal flood hazard prevention standards and

recommendations as established by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

12. Discussion of permits and/or fees for movie production activity in Corrales

13. Discussion and consideration of Proclamation 08-01 proclaiming February 10th - 16th 2008 as

National Salute to Hospital Veterans Week

XIII. ADJOURNMENT:

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service

to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Village clerk at the Village Offices located at 4324 corrales Road, at lease five 5

days prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes. can be provided in various accessible formats.

Please contact the Village clerk at 897-0502, or by e-mail at jceyestäcorra!esnrnorg if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.

The complete council packet may be viewed on the web, visit www.Crti,$Marg click on Government & Council Meetings



Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

January 22, 2008 Council Meeting

January 23, 2008 Special Council Meeting
February 5, 2008 Special Council Meeting



VILLAGE OF CORRALES
GOVERNING BODY
DRAFT MINUTES

January 22, 2008
7:00 p.m.

COUNCIL/MUNICIPAL COURT CHAMBERS

Governing Body Present:
Mayor Gasteyer, Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera.

Village Staff Present:
Village Administrator Nora Scherzinger, Village Clerk Juan Reyes, Police Chief Ray Vigil

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Gasteyer called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Gasteyer announced that the only change to the agenda is the removal of the Santa Ana Pueblo
presentation regarding wild turkeys.

Motion: Approve the agenda with removal of the `a" item in `Communications, Action: Approve, Moved
by Councilor Gonzales, Seconded by Councilor Gerhart.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote summary: Yes = 4.

Yes: Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. January 8, 2008 Council Meeting
Motion: Approve the minutes of January 8, 2008, Action: Approve, Moved by Councilor Fahey,
Seconded by Councilor Rivera.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote summary: Yes = 4.
Yes: Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera

IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS
- Nobody filed as a write-in candidate for the March 2008 Municipal Election;
- Village Clerk Juan Reyes stated that the Sandoval County Clerk will close the voter registration books

on February 5, 2008. He also stated that the first date to mail absentee ballots will be January 29,
2008, and on February 13, 2008, absentee voting by machine will begin. The last date to vote by
absentee in the Clerk's office is February 29, 2008;

- Mayor Gasteyer was invited to a dual ceremony for Eagle Scouts for two brothers, Ford and Vaughn
Carty. Dr. Jim Cheek is the Scout Master of Troop 703;

- The Design group from UNM will be coming to the Village soon; however, no date has been set;
- There will be a public forum for the public to meet the candidates and ask questions. Mayor Gasteyer

asked for suggestions for dates and February at 7:00 pm was suggested. Subsequently, the forum
was rescheduled for Wednesday, February 13, at 7:00 pm.

- The second reading for the zone change at 7227 Corrales Rd., the piece of property proposed to hold
the Corrales International School, will be on Wednesday, January 23' at 7:00 at the Old Church, and
the third reading will be held on February 5 at 7:00;

Souder Miller will hold its final presentation for the general public on January 25th at 6:30;
- On Saturday, January 26th, from 9:00 am - 12:00 pm, there will be free firewood from trimming in the

Bosque available at the Cabezon gate;
- On February 19, there will be an appeal hearing regarding a denial of a site plan by the Planning and

Zoning Commission to the applicant Ben Ruiz for an office development;
- A date needs to be set for a denial of a final plat by the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding

Grace Lane; Tuesday, February 26 at 6:00 pm prior to the Council's 7:00 pm Regular Meeting was
agreed upon.

V. COMMUNICATIONS



2. Village Administrators Report

In addition to the submitted written report, Village Administrator Nora Scherzinger added that the RFP for
the skate park will be advertised in the Albuquerque Journal.

Councilor Gerhart asked what a warrant study is? Village Attorney John Appel advised that it is a term that
traffic engineers use commonly in the Department of Transportation to determine whether the proposed
change in signage or other traffic devices is "warranted" by the circumstances.

Councilor Gerhart asked about the completion of Access Road A, and stated that she wanted to schedule

a work study with Rio Rancho. Administrator Scherzinger stated that she has been in contact with Rio
Rancho officials and they have not set a date. Mayor Gasteyer said that Mike Williams, the interim Mayor
in Rio Rancho, had advised that further discussion should be postponed until after the March Municipal
Election.

a. Santa Ana Pueblo presentation regarding wild turkeys

Deleted from Agenda

VI. COUNCILORS FORUM: This section is for information purposes only, not for discussion and debate,
to inform the Governing Body of an issue! concern that would not be addressed on the agenda during the
business session.

VII. CORRALEIIOS FORUM: This section is for information purposes only, not for discussion and debate,
to inform the Governing Body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda during the
business session. There is a 3-minute time limit, unless approved by the Presiding Officer.

Ralph Martinez stated that Gary Adams, owner of the property now leased by Cerelink and other tenants,
did not follow through on the condition for his site development plan approval of several years ago that
stated he would build a three to five foot buffer with a fence. The fence is down and after discussion with
Planning and Zoning Administrator Cyndie Tidwell, he was advised that it is not a Village matter, but he
believes it is and needs to be enforced.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA:

3. Reports from Boards, Commissions, and Department Head Personnel

Mayor Gasteyer thanked the staff directors for their submissions, and complimented the Fire Department
for its food drive and for installing fire detectors in homes where gift packages were delivered;

Councilor Gerhart asked Planning and Zoning Administrator Cyndie Tidwell about her report regarding a
code enforcement case and asked what the Village does in terms of New Mexico Environment Department
violations and what the options are for the Village? PZA Tidwell described the nuisance property in
question, and said that she contacted the NMED field office in Rio Rancho and asked them to inspect the
property. They contacted the property owner and collaborated with the Village on who would do what. The
property owner's were advised by a 2007 letter that they need to contact NMED or be faced with monetary
fines. In addition, the Construction Industries Division has been asked to do a mobile home inspection,
which is its responsibility.

Councilor Gerhart stated that in the Safe Routes to School Memo, Michelle Keleher said that she
requested spending money from the Governing Body, and Councilor Gerhart asked if there had been a
communication from Safe Routes to School? She stated that she had advised them to send a letter to the
Village Administrator.

Motion: Motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by Councilor Fahey, Seconded
by Councilor Gerhart.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote summary: Yes = 4.

Yes: Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera.



IX. CONFIRMATION OF APPOINTMENTS
4. Douglas Findley for the Farmland Preservation Committee

Motion: Move to approve Doug Findley for the Farmland Preservation Committee, Action: Approve,
Moved by Councilor Fahey, Seconded by Councilor Gonzales.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote summary: Yes = 4.

Yes: Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera.

X. OLD BUSINESS:
5. Second Reading:
Discussion of Ordinance No. 07-020, an Ordinance amending section 8-26, "Definitions", and
Section 8-27, "adoption of Corrales building code; amendments; penalties" of the Code of

Ordinances of the Village of Corrales, being sections 10-1-1 through 10-1-4 of ordinance no.67,
adopted August 10, 1976, as amended; adopting by reference the 2003 New Mexico historic earthen
buildings code; incorporating the 2003 New Mexico Historic Earthen Buildings Code into the
Corrales Building Code.

No discussion

6. Discussion of Draft Wastewater System Peer Review Report from Jerry May, Souder, Miller and
Associates and response to questions and comments from the Governing Body only.

Mayor Gasteyer asked Jerry May what will happen in the final presentation to the general public scheduled
for Thursday, January 24th at 6:30 pm in these Council Chambers? Jerry May answered there will be some
information about hydrogeology in the Village and also a map will be presented with the results from the
2006 voluntary well sampling, and the presentation will be concluded with the recommended project for the
Village. He asked that questions be written and submitted to the Governing Body, and addressed at the
conclusion of the presentation.

Councilor Fahey asked if the finished report will become the recommended alternative, or can the existing
Preliminary Engineering Report PER be used?

Jerry May referred the question to Dr. Richard Rose, Chief, Construction Products Division, NMED, who
stated that it's up to the Governing Body. How the Governing Body decides to proceed will also affect the
separate funding division.

Discussion ensued about the options the Village faces with regards on how to proceed. Councilor Fahey
asked questions about 6 inch pipe of the Souder Miller and Associates draft versus the 1 8-inch pipe of the
earlier report.
Dr. Rose replied that the SMA report has looked at the entire Village and found an approach which

confines the collection pipe to the business core while utilizing ATUs for other areas. Mr. May stated that
the PEER review looked at the "big pipe" recommendation of the earlier study as it built a rate schedule.

Councilor Fahey asked if the 6-inch pipe would be adequate if collection was extended to denser
residential areas nearby? Mr. May said that expanding collection beyond the business core would mean a
bigger collection system.

Councilor Fahey noted that the installation of a STEP system in the business core on the west side of
Corrales Road might encounter problems with fiber optic cable already buried on that side. He asked if
grinder pumps are included in the costs presented and Jerry May said they were. Mr. May continued that
ABCWUA will only go to the property line and business core property owners must provide for their

systems up to that point.

Councilor Fahey asked Mr. May to confirm that the Village should contemplate a full-time staffer for
wastewater system maintenance and administration.



Mayor Gasteyer asked about pages 55 and 56 where the Village is called upon to play a role in the
passage of five different ordinances making pumping mandatory in the Village. Is there any help available

to individual home owners for the expenses? Are there financing mechanisms used elsewhere? The

Village can borrow on behalf of the municipal government, but not for individual homeowner's to make an
improvement. Could some sort of municipal revolving assistance fund be created?

Dr. Rose stated that the NMED is currently working on a program in Doña Ana County to provide that kind

of assistance with federal funds.

Mayor Gasteyer asked about the business core sewer line connection to Albuquerque. He stated that in

the earlier PER, it was contemplated that the Village would need to set up a special assessment district for
users to finance the construction, or should the available state money be looked at?

Jerry May stated that he suggests funding from the State should be used as matching funds for the EPA

grant that are required.

Councilor Gonzales stated that the core area is mixed, with both residential and commercial uses. If it is
not designated to Souder Miller as a commercial core, how would that change the overall "needs" map
where there are red zones, etc.?

Discussion ensued on how the rates are figured in commercial and residential areas.

Councilor Gonzales stated that there is an area in Corrales designated as "not risky" that is all the acre
zoning that was formerly in Bernalillo County. Councilor Gonzales asked Jerry May if he thought it is
important for the Village of Corrales to protect two acre zoning through its jurisdiction in that area in order
to maintain that "clean spot"?

Jerry May stated that some past data doesn't say it's that clean, and it's lower risk because of the fact that
there's enough separation.

Councilor Gerhart discussed the commercial core. She asked if the system is sized to the current capacity,

to what capacity does the Village have to grow to produce the 50,000 gallon per day?

Jerry May stated that the 50,000 gallons per day came from the original PER, and it could limit businesses.
He discussed different flows for different types of businesses. A second 6-inch pipe could be installed to
plan for increased effluent in the future due to business expansion.
Councilor Fahey noted that the earlier study indicated that properties along a Corrales Road collection
route from Calle Cuervo to Meadowlark would be required to tie-in. Those properties are now largely in the
"no planned action zone. Dr. Rose said that if the collector line is a forced main, tie-in is not required.

Councilor Gerhart asked if the Middle Rio Grande Conservancy District had been asked about an alternate
route along the Interior and Riverside Drains? Mr. May said he had considered the possibility but did not
see much advantage to that route by the time you added feeder collector lines.

Councilor Gerhart asked if cluster system were considered in the red, immediate need, sector? Mr. May
said that the report suggests that it would be the individual property owners decision whether to join and
form a cluster treatment system, though the collective costs might exceed installation of individual ATIJs.

Councilor Gonzales observed that the government has to be involved to protect the Village's groundwater
resources.

Councilor Gerhart inquired about the timing of addressing areas of need. Could it depend on the age of
existing systems? Could it await the sale or transfer of homes? Could it await failure of existing systems?
In each case, Mr. May answered, "No".

Councilor Gerhart asked whether NMED would consider the five suggested ordinances voluntary or
required? Mr. May said that NMED might not intervene until a property is contaminated but the suggested
program would be Village requirements.



Concern was expressed about the availability of acceptable ATUs for purchase. Mr. May recommended
that well-established national firms with proven results be chosen.

Councilor Gerhart asked about depending on NMED to sample water rather than Village-financed analysis.
Mr. May said the Village's existing program does provide some sort of baseline but monitor wells, with
consistent depths and professional sampling techniques, would provide a better data base.

Councilor Gerhart asked what will happen next procedurally? When will the Governing Body discuss and
decide their recommendation?

Mayor Gasteyer stated than any Councilor can bring up a game plan in the form of a Resolution. The
material is being shared with NMED.

Councilor Gonzales asked if additional work would be provided from Souder Miller?

Mayor Gasteyer stated that yes, there will be a final report by February 5th,

Jerry May stated that amendments can be made later on.

Councilor Fahey asked if an amended PER needs to be submitted for approval? Dr. Rose answered yes,
if reimbursement approval is expected from the State or Federal funds.

Discussion ensued on how to proceed with approval and recommendations.

Xl. NEW BUSINESS:

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
- Santa Ana Resources Department will hold a discussion on wild turkeys.

- Possible second reading of Ordinance 08-002
- Nominees for the Investment Advisory Committee

Mayor Gasteyer described the decorum and agenda for the Special Meeting regarding the zone change on
February 5, 2008.

8. Approval of Resource Technology, Inc. for development of a Comprehensive Trails Master Plan
pursuant to RFP No. 2007-005.

Councilor Gerhart asked about the timeline or completion date? Bob Oberdorfer from Resource
Technology, Inc. stated it would be 12 months.

Councilor Gerhart asked about the term "legal tool box" used in the RFP and the proposal from Resource
Technology. Mr. Oberdorfer stated that in contract negotiations, his firm would work with the Village to
define the term so everyone knows exactly what it means.

Motion: Move to approve Resource Technology, Inc. for the development of a Comprehensive Master
Trails Plan pursuant to RFP 2007 and instruct the administration to enter into contract, Action: Approve,
Moved by Councilor Gerhart, Seconded by Councilor Fahey.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote summary: Yes = 4.
Yes: Councilor Fahey, Councilor Gerhart, Councilor Gonzales, Councilor Rivera.

Village Administrator Nora Scherzinger thanked the RFP selection and review committee: Cindy Hoover,
George Marr, David Sanchez, and Mary Feldblum.

9. Discussion and consideration to Publish and Post Ordinance No. 08-002, an ordinance to
impose a ¼ of 1% increase in Municipal Gross Receipts Tax in the Village of Corrales, the proceeds
to be directed to public safety purposes and subject to approval by referendum of voters in the
Village of Corrales




